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James Earl Ray Recaptured 
After Sawing Out of Cell
Petros, Tenn. (AP)—James 

Earl Ray, serving 99 years for 
killing Dr. Martin Luther King, 
jr., made an unsuccessful at­
tempt yesterday to escape from 

i prison.

Ray sawed and hacked his 
way out of his cell in Brushy 
Mountain state prison, Tennes­
see’s maximum security facility. 
But guards recaptured him in 
less than half an hour before 
he could find a way to get over 
the prison wall.

Ray, 42 years old, pleaded 
guilty to the sniper slaying of 
King outside a Memphis motel 

I April 4, 1968.
j Warden Robert H. Moore said 
i Ray used a hacksaw, apparent­
ly slipped to him by his cell­
mate, Roy Morelock, to cut 
through one bar of his cell.

JAMES EARL RAY

inches,” Moore said. “Then he
_“He sawed through the bar crawled out and apt into a heat- 
ana got a clearance of 18 to 24 ing tunnel where the tempera-
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tures sometimes gets up to 400 
degrees. .

“It apparently got too hot for 
him in there and he came out. 
Our guards apprehended him.”

Moore said Morelock, serving 
a life term as a habitual crimi­
nal, worked as a prison mainte­
nance man and had access to 
such tools as a hacksaw.

“I figure Morelock slipped the 
hacksaw to Ray and they both 
intended to escape,” Moore 
said. “But guards heard a noise, 
checked Ray’s cell and discov-
ered him missing, 
didn’t have time to 
out.”

Moore said both

Morelock 
try to get

Ray and
Morelock had been moved from 
what he called a working area, 
of the prison to its maximum 
security section. They Were put 
in separate cells. .
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Zj-1" ByHarry Jones, Jr. A 
A Member of The Star's Staff 

© 1972, The Kansas City Star/

Enter now, briefly, the fasci- 
i nating and conspiratorial World 
J of the Ray brothers—James 
‘ Earl Ray, 44, John Ray, 38, and 
। Jerry Ray, 37. -

The limited glimpse into their 
* lives is occasioned by their ex­

pressed concern to The Star 
over a recent 52-day period 
which John Ray, convicted of 
bank robbery, spent in the con- 

‘ trol unit (commonly called “the 
1 hole”) at the federal penitentia- 
J ry at. Leavenworth, Kan.
I James Earl Ray, who is serv- 
j ing a 99-year sentence in the 
। Tennessee State, prison in Nash­
* ville for the assassination of Dr. 
I Martin Luther King, Jr., says 
* that he believes that John is be- 
{ ing harassed at Leavenworth as 
f part of an effort to persuade 
{ him, James Earl Ray, to start 
t co-operating with the FBI in its 
{ investigation of the King assas- 
। sination.
1 If John Ray thinks this is the 
J reason, he did not Say so in ei- 
»ther of two letters he has writ- 
[ten about it. Rather he chalks 
i his troubles up to the federal 
J government’s desire to perse­
cute “right-wingers” and white
i,

w

Southern segregationists.
Jerry Ray, the youngestlu - - ■ - - .

* brother and the only one not in
{prison, tends to lean toward 
i brother James’s theory, adding 
{ that he believes the FBI also 
* would like to pressure him and 
•John to start co-operating, 
{thinking they know things they 
* have not yet told.
{ James Earl Ray, meanwhile, 
s continues to maintain that he 
{was coerced into confessing to 
{the slaying of the famed civil 
‘rights leader. And John Ray in- 
{sists that he is serving an 18- 
»year sentence at Leavenworth 
{for a bank robbery he did not 
, commit.
• James Earl Ray is not yet 
«talking much about the “con- 
{spiracy” in which he may or 
‘may not have been involved, 
»but Jerry Ray said last 'week by 
{telephone that his brother did 
»not fire at Dr. King, that two 
{other men were involved and 
/‘used” James Earl Ray to im- 
‘ plicate him while he was in 
-Memphis on the evening of the 
murder. Jie added he does not 
{know the identity of these two 
■men or their motive.
* But it was John’s plight, not

y

F

I
?&% • ^

JOHN RAY JAMES RAY

James’s, about which the three 
brothers have written and Jerry 
Ray has telephoned The Star.

Prison officials at Leaven­
worth, interviewed Friday, 
readily acknowledge that John 
Ray spent from Sept. 19 until 
Nov. 10 in “the hole,” but say 
that this had nothing to do with 
James Earl Ray. They said it 
was because John Ray had re­
fused (1) to work in the shoe re­
pair shop with a Negro, and (2) 
to live in a racially integrated, 
6-man cell hi Cell Block “A”.

James Earl Ray’s letter (it 
appears to be from him, any­
way; it was mailed here by an 
intermediary and Jerry Ray 
vouches for its authenticity) ob­
jects to efforts by prison offi­
cials at Leavenworth last year 
to confine John Ray in an 8-man 
cell with seven black prisoners 
“under the guise that they want 
to integrate the prison.”

‘‘There are indications,” 
James Earl Ray wrote, “that 
this integration pitch by prison 
officials is just a simple ploy by 
the officials—who are under the 
control of the J.D. (U.S. Justice 
Department)—to have someone 
maimed who won’t co-operate 
with them in matters outside 
the jurisdiction of prison offi­
cials, then, if the blacks go for 
it, the officials can blame the 
resulting violence on the black 
prisoners.”

Officials at Leavenworth say 
that there are no 8-man cells 
there, that the largest are 6- 
man cells and that while they 
are all racially integrated, the 
integration is always balanced 
so that a 5-1 ratio would never

s

?#

v

JERRY RAY

gravated assault in the shooting 
of a 17-year-old youth at 'the 
headquarters of the National 
States Rights Party, a white su­
premacist group, in Savannah, 
Ga. ; ,

A jury found him innocent in 
November of that year, howev­
er, after testimony was present­
ed that Jerry Ray had shot the 
youth in self-defense after he 
found him trying to steal rec­
ords from the headquarters.

Jerry Ray said the youth was

develop, black on white or white : 
on black. ।

Janies Earl Ray’s letter adds j 
that when he was awaiting trial 
in Memphis and his “alleged de­
fense attorney” was trying to 
talk Mm into pleading guilty, 
“one of the arguments this at­
torney used . . . was that if no 
such plea was forthcoming then 
I could expect harassment 
against certain family members 
and the J.D. might actually ar­
rest one or both of my brothers 
in some connection With the 
crime I was charged with.”

James Earl Ray enclosed a 
copy of a statement he said the 
court would not allow to become 
a part of the court record alleg­
ing that after he had pleaded 
guilty an FBI agent visited him 
in prison and told him “that he 
wanted to find out those respon­
sible for Martin Luther King’s 
death, and he expected my co­
operation.” ' ..............

He then quoted the agent as 
having told him that if he main­
tained an unco-operative atti- 
due, “I could expect my broth­
ers, John and Jerry, to be down 
here keeping me company.”

Both of James Earl Ray’s 
brothers did have trouble with 
the law after the King assassi­
nation, but no concrete evidence 
has been brought forth to link 
these troubles with their notori­
ous brother.

a member of the American Nas 
Party and was trying to stej 
the names of all N.S.R.P. menc 
bers for its own use.

Jerry Ray was identified then 
as both a security guard for the 
N.S.R.P. headquarters and 
campaign managed for the 
Georgia gubernatorial candida­
cy that year of J. B. Stoner, an 
N.S.R.P. leader. Stoner, who is 
one oE James. Earl Ray’s attor­
neys, more recently ran for the 
U.S. Senate in Georgia. He lost 
both races.

It was Stoner who first in- 
formed.The Star that John Ray 
was having trouble in Leaven­
worth. Jerry Ray followed this 
up with a call of his own.

. In a follow-up letter, Jerry 
Ray wrote that the FBI in St. 
Louis is “frying to get me on a 
phony bank robbery charge.” 
By telephone yesterday, he add­
ed that federal orders had been 
issued , that ,, apy time he or 
brother John’A he w#
freeLwas found near a rob 
they were to be picked up ,

John Ray was convictedpf 
robbing the Bank of St. Peters 
in eastern Missouri on Oct. 26; 
1970, with two other men. Aboqt 
$53-,000 was takeninthe rob­
bery.
Jerry Ray was arrested in 

July, 1970, and charged with ag-
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SIS of how John Bay choices: ■:■ ku the trouble­
wound up in “the hole” at Leav- making guard, (2) kiU the crazy 
enworth vary, according to who Nhgrb, (3) go to (my) cell and 
is t e Hing them. Combining wait until court (the prison ad-
John’s version with that offdred 
by C. J. Malley, assistant ward­
en for custody and S. R. Wit­
kowski, case management co-or­
dinator at the prison, this is 
how it happened:

AU agree that John Ray 
stayed out of trouble from the 
day he entered the penitentiary 
in May, 1971, until September of 
this year.

It is also agreed that John 
Ray was assigned to work in 
the shoe repair shop at the pris­
on and had worked there for 
some time without incident un­
til, according to Ray, a “half­
Jew, half-Indian” was assigned 
to work there with him.

, „ , , . - race being what they are, might Malley sard that only two men ^^ ^ but ^ that the 
work, in this shop and because punishment involved simply loss 
knives are necessary in shoe r^ of ^ privacy of a 1-man cell, 
tar, the two men are normally •^os^^mates regar(j the single 
nocked inside the shop during privilege to be sought,
forking hours. - ' .
B , Malley disputed John Ray on

“One day out of a clear blue otherUimpOrtant parts of his 
sky,” John Ray wrote, the nut g^- 
(the “half-Jew, half-Indian”), ----  
ran at me with a knife. I took it: 
away from him. Other inmates 
told me I should cut his throat, 
since it would be justified.”

’ The man was transferred to 
another federal institution after: 
this happened, Ray wrote.
Neither Witkowski nor Malley 

said he had heard of such an in-; 
cident.

They do agree, however, that
on Sept. 10 a Negro inmate was 
assigned to work with Ray in 
the shoe repair shop. (Ray re­
fers to him as “a crazy Negro.”

justment committee) opened
^pd get a transfer. I take No. 3. 
A|$^ time I figured it was the 
least of three evils. Judge Mal- 
leycailed me a racist and said 
I refuse to work.”

Johh Ray said he was ordered 
movedfrom his single cell to a 
6-man, racially integrated cell 
as punishment, citing the racial 
make-up of the other inmates 
rather than the number of cell- 
rqates as the element of punish­
ment involved.
? M a Iley and Witkowski ac­
knowledged they could under­
stand why Ray, his attitudes on

He said Ray was told he could man cell but to keep all 6-man i to live in a combination ted-l 
, .. ■ . ... .. ^ ceus jntegrate<j on a balanced room and toilet with a Negro.”work at some other job if he did

not want to work with the black 
inmate in shoe repair, but that 
it would be unfair to move the 
black from the job just because 
Ray wanted him moved. The 
black was better qualified at 
shoe repair than Ray, Malley 
added.

Ray refused to take any other 
job, he said, insisting the black 
inmate be given another assign­
ment.

cells integrated on a balanced

After disciplining Ray by tak­
ing him out of the single cell, 
Malley added, Ray chose on his 
own to go to solitary confine­
ment rather than an integrated 
cell.

Malley said that John Ray 
agreed on Nov. 10 to work in 
the prison paint shop, whereup­
on he was released from “the 
hole” and placed in a 2-man 
cell. His cellmate, he said, is 
white.

The policy at Leavenworth, he 
said, is never to force men of 
different races into the same 2-

basis. To have racially segre­
gated 6-man cells, Witkowski 
added, would be to encourage 
various ethnic groups—particu­
larly Chicanos—to seek the 
same type segregation for them­
selves.

Witkowski added that to prac­
tice racial segregation at the 
prison would be to defy the U.S.
Supreme Court. ,

Asked why they would place’ 
two men of opposite races in a 
locked, shoe-repair shop in 
which knives were available— 
especially when the white’s 
brother was thought to have 
killed Dr. King—but not put two 
such men in a double cell 
against the wishes of either, 
Malley said the two situations 
were different.

John Ray’s comments on ra­
cial integration in prison includ­
ed the observation/‘Strange 
Nixon don’t want to integrate a 
suburb, but will send a white 
segregation(ist) to months in 
solitary because he don’t want

“This sneaky Nixon would dol 
the same for the suburbs U he’ 
could get away with it,” he add­
ed. -

John Ray revealed other atti­
tudes on politics and race in his 
writing, asserting, for instance, 
that the Justice Department is 
persecuting “right-wingers” 
while letting “black militants” 
alone. .

He objected to the Justice De­
partment’s efforts to deny pa­
roles to such persons as Robert 
B. DePugh, founder of the right­
ist Minutemen organization,’and 
(an apparent reference to him­
self) “a person who (hasliieei 
convicted of robbing a jew-con­
trolled bank.”

When asked to interview,John 
Ray personally at the prison 
Friday, Malley and Witkowski 
refused, citing Bureau of Pris­
ons regulations prohibiting 
newsmen from interviewing fe5 
er al prisoners. This general pol 
icy has been challenged in comi 
and a final decision is pending.I

Ray said. “He 
back and work

. *5 . immediately went to a 
guard and asked for a 
transfer,” John 
told me to go 

I with him.”
I had Jhree
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[Lawyer Backs Ray in Kin
the 1968 assassination of the man of Houston, everythiiMemphis tAP—James Earl

_Ray, claimed he was sending 
on a sidewalk outside a room­
ing house when Dr. Martin 
Luther King, Jr., was killed in 
1968 and ran away because he 
knew he was in trouble, Ray’s 
first attorney testified yester­
day. .

Arthur Hanes, Sr., of Bir­
mingham, Ala., testifying in a 
U.S. District Court hearing on 
whether Ray should be al­
lowed to nullify an eai lier 
guilty plea in King’s death, 
said Ray told him he had 

gone to the rooming house 
and met a contact named 
“Raoul,” talked with the man 
and then went downstairs and 
“had a beer or two.” _

“He was standing out on the 
sidewalk in front of the room­
ing house at 6:01 p.m. when 
the shot was fired,” Hanes 
told the court. He said that 
Rav was scared and fled.

Earlier, Ray had testified 
that when asked about a con­
spiracy in the slaying, he said 
he was “never associated 
with more than one person.” 
He did not identify the person 
and was not asked his name.

The statement came as Ray away. , .
---- -------- . “He walked to the rooming 

concluded his testimony m a d checked in and
U.S. District Court hearing on l”h’ contact contacted 
whether he may withdraw his. asked where his carguilty plea and stand trial m ;"dH™es !aid

' “ According to Ray, Hanes 
said, the contact had him get 
the car and park it near the

civil rights leader.
Hanes’s account of Ray’s 

version of his whereabouts 
when King was killed was the 
first sworn testimony to chal­
lenge police theories that Ray 
shot King from a bathroom in 
the rooming house. .

Hanes said he had asked 
Ray 109 times, “Did you fire 
the shot that killed Dr., 
King?”

“Invariably the answer was
Hanes said.noV. AXUUVV M-**« M

Hanes said Hay told him ,
that on the night of April 2 his 
30-.06 rifle was “taken” from 
a motel in Mississippi and 
that he did not see it again 
“until it was thrown down’ 
with a bundle containing 
Ray’s personal effects and bi­
noculars near the rooming 
house after the shots were
fired , ,,

Hanes said that when the 
rifle was taken, Ray was left 
a note telling him to come to 
the rooming house on Mem­
phis’s Jlain Street at 3 p.m. 
April 4. According to Ray’s I 
account. Hanes said, Ray 
drove into the area and 1 
parked seven or eight blocks

rooming house. Ray then was 
told to buy the binoculars. 
Hanes said. Ray returned to a 
room at the rooming house, 
according to Hanes’s testi- 
mbny. ' t

“At 5:20 p.m. the contact 
told him ‘Jim, you go down 
and get yourself, a beer at 
Jim’s grill,’ “ Hanes gave as 
Ray’s account.

Hanes and his son, Arthur 
Hanes, Jr., were dismissed as 
Ray’s attorneys in November 
1963, two days before Ray 
was scheduled to go on trial 
for murdering King.

Ray touched on the conspir­
acy theory only briefly yestor- 
ay when he was asked 
hether he had told his

er attorney. Percy Fore-

about his actions in the case,
Ray said he told Foreman 

all the details “but I didn’t 
tell him about anybody else, 
their names or addresses.” 
He said he had no addresses 
but had “a couple of phone 
numbers.”

Ray said he later was 
pressed by an author, William' 
Bradford Huie, who was writ-' 
ing about the case, tor the 
names of coconspirators, (]

|| “The conspirator's, I never J. 
;|hs associated with more I 
/than one person,” Ray said. J

Kansas City Times

f “I don’t believe I ever used 
H the word ‘conspirator’ or *con-
! i spiracy.’ ”

Ray seeks a trial o n 
grounds that Foreman co­
erced his plea and his former 

i attorneys were guilty of a 
i ..conflict of interest because off 

[heir rights to literary royal- ■ 
i ties from a book about the
I®. iz
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]|Ray Claims State Had No Case
Memphis (AP)-James Earl 

wRay testified yesterday he be­
lieved the state had only a 

andcircumstantial case 
couldn’t have convicted him 
of murder in the 1968 assassi­
nation of Dr. Martin Luther
King, Jr.

Ray told a federal court 
hearing that his attorney, 
Percy Foreman, Houston, 
urged him in early 1969 to 
plead guilty because Foreman 
argued there was a 100 per 
cent chance of him being 
found guilty and a 99 per cent 
chance he would get the death 
penalty if he went to trial.

“I told him I thought that
was ridiculous, that the state 
would rely on circumstantial 
evidence, and the most they 
could convict me of, if they 
convicted me, was aidingand 
abetting,” Ray said.

. I Ray pleaded guilty i n 
f March 1969 to murder and

was sentenced to a 99-year
। prison term.

The U.S. Supreme Court
yesterday upheld Ray's effort 
to obtain evidence about the
circumstances of his guilty^ 
plea, upholding a federal
court order that his former
attorneys surrender docu^ 
ments connected with the

Ray testified Friday that 
royalties from book 
about his part in the slayin; 
were more important to his
lawyers than trying to prove
him innocent.

Ray said that 'Birmingham, 
Ala., attorney, Arthur Hanes, 
Sr., sold the book rights of 
Ray’s story to author William 
Bradford Huie. Ray ^d he 
suspected Huie of hurting his 
defense by . disclosing confi-
dential information.

. The evidentiary hearing be 
fore Judge Robert McRae was ffj 
ordered in January by the
U.S. Court of Appeals for the , 
6th Circuit. Ray first tried to

get a full trial six weeks afte
entering his guilty plea March

King, the civil righto leader^
was gunned down as he stood
on a Memphis motel balconyfl
April 4, 1968.
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I Ray Denies Shot 
But Takes Blame

jr,

fl
Ramsays he did not shoot Dr. 

'Martin Luther King, Jr., “but 
I believe I am partly respon­
sible for his death.”

The statement came in a 
letter introduced into evidence 
at a U.S. District Court hear­
ing at which Ray is seeking to 
retract his plea of guilty to 
the slaying of the civil rights 
leader here in 1968.

The letter was written by 
Ray to Sen. James O. East­
land (D-Miss.) on March 14, 
1969, four days after he en­
tered his plea of guilty in the 
King slaying.

Asked at the court hearing 
yesterday what the wording of 
his letter to Eastland meant, 
Ray replied, “I assumed you 
could be involved in some 
kind of crime and not have 
knowledge of it. I had no di­
rect knowledge.”

Ray’s attorneys contend 
Ray, 46, was the “fall guy” of 
a conspiracy carried out by 
others.

Ray also testified that on 
the afternoon of the King as­
sassination April 4, 1968, he 
had rented a room across the 
street from the motel where 
King was murdered, believing 
there would be “some kind of 
meeting between me and an­
other party up there.”

He did not elaborate, but 
Ins attorneys have said he. 

a thought he was going to dis-j 
licuss the gun-running business. 
Ai Ray said he could not ac-|

count for the discovery an the . the case because I thoi
street nearby of his binocu- I my health was deteriorating.
lars and .30-06 rifle, which the
state contends was fired from L 
the rooming house bathroom. ®

Ray’s fingerprints were on 
the rifle. ■

Ray testified he had wit- J 
nesses who could tell of his 
whereabouts 11 minutes be­
fore the assassination. He 
said he had kept the informa­
tion to himself because he 
feared the FBI would find the 
witnesses and harass them.
Ray was not asked before 

the hearing was recessed for 
the day where he was at the 
time of King’s slaying.

Ray claims his former at­
torney, Percy Foreman of 
Houston, coerced him into 
pleading guilty and that both 
Foreman and another former 
attorney for Ray, Arthur 
Hanes, Sr., of Birmingham, 
Ala., were more interested in 
literary royalties on his case 
than in preparing his defense.

Ray said Foreman talked 
him into what he thought 
would be a “technical plea of 
guilty to get me out of town to 
the penitentiary.” He said 
that he was unable to get 
Foreman to withdraw from 
the case, so he decided to 
plead guilty, then retract the I 
plea, obtain a new attorney ' 
and reopen the case .

“I didn’t want to drag out “

(Indicate page, name of 
newspaper, city and state.)
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[Ray Testifies In King Case
* tihat FnrAman in? Hanes 40 ner cent of allMemphis (AP)^James Earl Houston, and that Foreman ing Hanes 40 per cent of all
Ray testified yesterday for 
the first time in an effort to 
win a trial in the slaying of 
Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., 
and said he suspected an au­
thor, William Bradford Huie, 
was a source of information 
to his prosecutors.

Ray told a federal court 
hearing he became worried 
when Huie “wrote something 
linking me to the K.K.K. (Ku 
Klux Klan),” and that he 
complained to a late Criminal 
Court judge, Preston Battle.

Ray said that he learned 
from reading Huie’s articles 
and books that “his whole 
technique was to get someone 
to incriminate themselves and 
then he’d give them money. I 
thought maybe he was trying 
to do the same thing on me.”

Ray said he also was suspi­
cious of Huie because the 
original list of 300 witnesses 
was increased by about 30 af­
ter he talked with the writer.

“I assumed Huie might 
h'Ve said something to the 
newspapers and the prosecu­
tion got some more witnesses 
or something,” he said.

Ray took the stand on the 
fourth day of his hearing to 
determine whether he is enti- 
tied to withdraw his guilty 
plea and stand trial for mur­
dering King on April 4, 1968. 
He is serving a 99-year sen­
tence for the murder.

y
lay claims he was coerced# 
o the plea by a former at-j 
ney, Percy Foreman, of

and another former attorney, 
Arthur Hanes, Sr., of Bir­
mingham, Ala., were guilty of 
a conflict of interest because 
of contracts they had with 
Huie for royalties on a book 
about the case.

Ray told of the events lead­
ing up to his guilty plea 
March 10, 1969, for the slaying 
of King as the civil rights 
leader stood on the balcony of 
the Lorraine Motel here.

Ray was a party to the con­
tracts which at first involved 
Huie, Hanes and, later, Fore­
man, when Foreman replaced

money that might develop 
“from the communications in­
dustry.”

Ray testified that Hanes 
recommended he drop an ap­
peal of his extradition to the 
United States. Hanes gave no 
reason, Ray said.

After his return to the Uni­
ted States, Ray said, “I sug­
gested maybe we should find 
some other way to finance the 
trial. I didn’t think it would

(Indicate page, name of 
newspaper, city and state.)

Page 4B
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Hanes as Ray’s lawyer.
Ray’s new attorneys 

challenged the claim 
Hanes and Foreman

have 
that 

were

take all that much 
finance the trial, 
strongly that was 
way to derive the 
funds.

money to 
He felt 
the only 

necessary

seeking through the contracts 
to recover their legal fees.

“I never got any money,” 
Ray said.

Ray said after his June 1968 
capture in London he had in­
quired about the availability 
of Hanes and F. Lee Bailey to 
represent him because they 
were the only two nationally 
known attorneys whose home­
towns he knew. He said later 
Hanes wrote him saying “he 
accepted the case, although 
actually I didn’t think I had

The defense later intro­
duced copies of several con­
tracts Ray said he had not 
seen until recently.

One was signed by Huie and 
Hanes before Ray’s extradi­
tion and provided that Huie 
would pay $35,000 to Ray and 
Hanes, but only after Ray
was returned 
States.

“Were you 
contract when

to the United

aware of this 
Hanes advised

asked him.
He said 

with him
Hanes later met 
in the London

prison. At a later meeting 
Hanes showed up with con­
tracts giving the lawyer Ray’s 
power of attorney and assign-

you to waive your extradition 
appeal?” asked James H. Le- 
sar, Ray’s current attorney. 
“No,” said Ray.

The defense also produced a 
contract signed by Huie with j 
Dell Publications. It discussed j 
the release of Huie’s novel on I 
March 15, 1969—five days af­
ter Ray claims he was co­
erced into the guilty plea. 11
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Ray Faces Quizzing On Claim t 
1 Memphis (AP)—JamesEarl *erced him into entering the trial six weeks after he u 
^Rav will be cross-examined guilty plea in March, 1969. pleaded guilty to Kings mur-j

(Indicate page, name of 
newspaper, city and state.)

Ra­ will be cross-examined
Tins week on his contention 
that he was coerced into 
pleading guilty to the 1968 
murder of Dr. Martin Luther 
King, Jr.

At a U.S. District Court 
hearing on his efforts to with­

. draw that plea and win a new 
trial, Ray testified Friday 
that royalities from a book 
about his part in the slaying 
were more important to his 
attoneys than trying' to prove 
him innocent.

Ray took the stand, criticiz­
ing his former attorneys, Ar­

i- thur Hanes, Birmingham, 
Ala., and Percy Foreman, 
Houston. Ray, serving a 99- 
year sentence in the state 
prison, insists Foreman co­

guilty plea in March, 1969.
“I saved James Earl Ray’s

life,” Foreman once said. “If 
I hadn’t negotiated that sen- 
fence for him, he’d have 
drawn the death penalty.”

Earlier, Ray said, Hanes 
had sold book rights for Ray’s 
story to William Bradford 
Huie, an author. Ray said he 
suspected Huie of hurting his 
defense by disclosing confi­
dential information.

“It appeared I was being a 
state’s witness against my­
self,” Ray said.

The evidentiary hearing be­
fore Judge Robert McRae was « 
ordered in January by the 6th, 
U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals. !, 
Ray first tried to get a full ,

der on March 10, 1969.
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Ray 'Wanted Popularity
Memphis (AP) — A federal The only testimony offered

yesterday was the sworri!

Rav s bid for a n
the slaying of Dr. Martin
Luther King, Jr., ended yes 
terday, after testimony tha
Ray acted alone and thought 

J the slaying'would make hid

, U.S. District Judge Robert1 
McRae, Jr., did not say when i
he might rule on Ray’s peti­
tion to withdraw his guilty
lea and stand trial in thei
pril 4, 1968, assassination
ut the judge indicated he

ould be working on the case
; least through the Christ-

[pas holidays.
At the end of the eighth day

jOf the hearing. McRae gave
lawyers until Dec. 13 to file
arguments and other docu-j

-fiments concerning the evi-ff

Ray will resume serving his 
P9-year sentence at the stated
penitentiary in Nashville.

Ray attorney, told newsmen
after the hearing there was

a very good chance of get­
ting a new trial.”

f McRae said he expected the! 
tease to be appealed to the 6th 
[U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals, 
[regardless of his ruling.

statement given April 3 by
Percy Foreman, of Houston;
who was one of Ray’s former
attorneys. In his statement
that was read into the court
record, Foreman said in “my
considered judgment, Ray
acted alone and there was
no conspiracy to kill King.

Foreman described Ray as
a racist who thought the as­
sassination of the civil rights
leader would make him “the
most popular man in Amer­

He thought everybody 
thought like he thought, and 
he thought the killing of Mar­
tin Luther King would make
him the champion of the
white race, that he would be
the most popular
America,” Foreman said.
“He could not think of any- | 
body not to be a racist if they J 
were white.’’

Foreman negotiated
waiver of the death penalty in
exchange for Ray’s guilty
plea and a 99-year sentence,

z which would make Ray eligi­
ble for parole in 33 years.

Ray pleaded guilty in the
original trial before a jury 
was empaneled or testimony 
heard.

Foreman said he entered
the case to save Ray’s life.

Foreman quoted Ray as 
saying he had intentionally 
placed his fingerprints on a 
30.06-caliber rifle found near
the scene of King’s slaying, 

uthorities have identified thels
ifle as the murder weapon. 
“He didn’t want to

caught, but he w a n t e dU
■ credit,” Foreman said.

(Indicate page, name of
newspaper, city and state.)
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GEORGE M.CAMP 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR

State of Missouri 
Department of Social Services 

Jefferson City

1976

Mr. Clarence M. Kelley, Director 
Federal Bureau of Investigation 
Washington, D. C.

Dear Mr. Kelley:

It is our understanding that the Attorney General has under 
consideration a review of the events that led up to the death 
of the late Dr. Martin Luther King. Either as part of that 
review, or as an independent review, we request that you initi­
ate an investigation into the activities of James Earl Ray 
while he was an inmate at the Missouri State Penitentiary in 
the early and mid-1960’s, including his escape from that insti­
tution in 1967.

Recently we reviewed the facts available to us and concluded 
that James Earl Ray’s escape did not involve the complicity of 
Missouri prison officials and that he was not a ’’merchant" 
within the Penitentiary. However, the State of Missouri has 
neither the resources nor the legal authority to conduct an in­
vestigation that could lead to a review of facts and interviews 
outside the State of Missouri. As part of your investigation, 
we ask that you review the material in our possession. We, of 
course, do not have access to the material and information that 
your agency and the U. S. Attorney’s Office developed in the
course of the investigation and the prosecution of James Earl
Ray, and therefore think that your office is in the best po­
sition to be absolutely sure that no stone has been left unturned.

We stand ready to assist and cooperate with you and loo
to hearing from you as soon as you have made a
course of action you wish to take.

GMC:mac

dp-ci si on on . U
SEARCHER—^-JNDEXE 
serializedZL^filed. 
ly yAPfk,61°r 

FBl—KANSA^a

Governor Christopher S. 
Attorney General Edward

Bond
H. Levi

^ill D. Williams, Regional
Director, FBI, Kansas City,Mo. 

Reverend Emanueal Cleaver 
Attorney General John Danforth

GEORGE M. CAMP
Deputy Director

LAWRENCE L. GRAHAM 
Director
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tution in 1967.

GEORGE M. CAMP

DEPUTY DIRECTOR

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES

Department of Social Services

Jefferson City

Mr. Clarence M. Kelley, Director
Federal Bureau of Investigation
Washington, D. C.

Dear Mr. Kelley:

It is our understanding that the Attorney General has under
consideration a review of the events that led up to the death
of the late Dr. Martin Luther King.
review, or as an independent review

Either as part of that
we request that you initi- ,

ate an investigation into the activities of James Earl Ray
while he was an inmate at the Missouri State Penitentiary in
the early and mid-1960’s including his escape from that insti-

Recently we reviewed/the facts available to us and concluded
that James Earl Ray’s escape did not involve the complicity of
Missouri prison officials and that he was not a merchant”
within the Penitentiary. However, the State of Missouri has
neither the resources nor the legal authority to conduct an in-
vestigation that could lead to a review of facts and interviews
outside the State of Missouri As part of your investigation,
we ask that you review the material in our possession.

do not have access to the material and information that
your agency and the U. S. Attorney’s Office developed in
course of the investigation and the prosecution of James

.Ray, and therefore think that your office is in the best 
I sition to be absolutely sure that no stone has been left

We stand ready to assist and cooperate with you and look
to hearing from you as soon as you
course of action you wish to

Governor Christopher S.
Attorney General Edward
Bill D. Williams, Regional Deputy Director

Director, FBI, Kansas City
Reverend Emanueal Cleaver
Attorney General John Danforth

KAWRENCF ' r , .
DireftorWi^i^
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GEORGE M. CAMP

DEPUTY DIRECTOR

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES

Department of Social Services

Mr. Clarence M. Kelley, Director
Federal Bureau of Investigation
Washington, D. C

Dear Mr. Kelley:

It is our understanding that the Attorney General has under
consideration a review of the events that led up to the death
of the late Dr. Martin Luther King. Either as part of that

we request that you initi-( 
ate an investigation into the activities of James Earl Ray

or as an independent review

while he was an inmate at the Missouri State Penitentiary in
the early and mid-1960’s, including his escape from that insti­

Recently we reviewed the facts available to us and concluded
that James Earl Ray’s escape did not involve the complicity of
Missouri prison officials and that he was not a
within the Penitentiary.

merchant”
the State of Missouri has

neither the resources nor the legal authority to conduct an in-
vestigation that could lead to a review of facts and interviews
outside the State of Missouri. As part of your investigation
we ask that you review the material in our possession.

do not have access to the material and information that
your agency and the U. S. Attorney’s Office developed in
course of the investigation and the prosecution of James
.Ray, and therefore think that your office is in the best 
I sition to be absolutely sure that no stone has been left

We stand ready to assist and cooperate with you and look 
have made a decision on*^ti6**to hearing from you as soon as you

course of action you wish to

Governor Christopher S.
Attorney General Edward
Bill D. Williams Regional Deputy

Director, FBI, Kansas Ci
Reverend Emanueal Cleaver
Attorney General John Danforth

Director
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To: SAC, Kansas City (JEi^s. 2)

From: Director, FBI

MUfeKIN 1“ '

Enclosed are two copies of a letter dated 4/13/76, from the 
State of Missouri, Department of Social Services, Jefferson City, 
Missouri.

Kansas dity, promptly contact George M, Camp, Deputy 
Director, and/or Lawrence L. Graham, Director, State of Missouri,
Department of Social Services, acknowledge receipt of this letter, and

g 
5
«

co.
interview them for full details regarding any information they may de sire £
to furnish re captioned matter; Review the material referred to in this 
letter to determine if it is pertinent to captioned matter. Advise them 
all of the information they furnish will be furnished to the CRD, USD J,

£ 
g KI

for its corisideration as to whether any additional Federal action is 
warranted* If they have any further questions, they may consider 
communicating directly with the CRD, USDJ, Washington, D. C. 20530.

. Promptly sulhm results* Conduct ncMadditional investigation 
at this time.
1 - SAC, Memphis (44-1987) (Info) (Enclosure) Enclosed is a copy of 

7 incoming.) -

. (Do halt type below this line.)

o 
ss
o
Q

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176



Alrtel

4/26/76

To; SAC, Kansas City (Encs. 2)

From; Director, FBI

MURKIN

Enclosed are two copies of a letter dated 4/13/76, from the 
State of Missouri, Department of Social Services, Jefferson City, 
Missouri.

Kansas City, promptly contact George M. Camp, Deputy 
Director, and/or Lawrence L* Graham, Director, State of Missouri, 
Department of Social Services, acknowledge receipt of this letter, and 
interview them for full details regarding any information they may desire 
to furnish re captioned matter. Review the material referred to in this 
letter to determine if it is pertinent to captioned matter. Advise them 
all of the Information they furnish will be furnished to the CRD, USDJ, 
for its consideration as to whether any additional Federal action is 
warranted. If they have any further questions, they may consider 
communicating directly with the CRD, USDJ, Washington, D. C, 20530.

Promptly sulhm results. Conduct no additional investigation 
at this time.
1 - SAC, Memphis (44-1987) (Info) (Enclosure) (Enclosed is a copy of 

Incoming.)

JEARCHED„_^La...INDEXED14.
SEP.!ALIZEIJ(li^£LEj)^

APR 2 81976
FBI —KANSAS CITY
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Ray's Escape!
J.J. Maloney was an inmate at the; 
[issouri State Penitentiary in 1961

£
en James Earl Ray escaped. Lest 
in two years later Ray was sen^ 
iced to prison after he pleaded gu* 
ilty to the assassination of Dr. Martin

Luther King, Jr.
After Ray's escape in Missouri a fel­

low prisoner who claimed to have- 
helped him told Maloney details of the 
escape. : ,.

By J. J. Maloney 
A Member of the Staff 

© The Kansas City Star, 1976

How James Earl Ray fled’the Mis­
souri State Penitentiary is as much a 
matter of dispute today as it was the 
day of the escape nine years ago.

Ray’s version is that he climbed a 
water pipe and pulled himself to the 
top of the prison wall using a 4-foot 
steel hook stolen from the prison’s 
kitchen.

; Prison officials maintain that he es-f 
caped hidden in a large box containing!, 

i bread being transported to an honor! - 
farm. i

A persistent theory since the slaying1
April 4, 1968, of Dr. Martin Luther 
King, Jr., and one that has been re­
vived recently, is that Ray was al]' 
lowed to escape so that he could par4 ’ 
ticipate in the slaying of the civiF 
rights leader. However, there has been 
no evidence uncovered to support this 
theory. :

(Ray pleaded guilty to the murder 
and was sentenced to 99 years in a 
Tennessee state prison. Shortly after­
ward he repudiated his plea and has 
claimed since that he was coerced into 
pleading guilty by Percy Foreman, his 
lawyer. Jerry Ray, a brother, said a 
federal appeals court is expected to 
rule early this month on Ray’s appeal 
seeking a trial.)

‘ Most persons who have investigate^ 
j and written about Ray's escape have 
• accepted the version offered by prison 
Officials—that Ray escaped in the.box 
being used to transport bread.

. It also has been generally conceded 
'chat in orddr for Ray to escape in then 
box he had to have an accomplice. The 
bread box measured about 4- by 3- by; 
Meet, and was large enough to allow I 
Ray to crouch down inside and then bey

covered by a layer of fresh-baked 
bread. • , ,

Left unanswered1 until now was 
whetiter the accomplice was a guard 
or a Ipnvict If he was a convict, did 
prisot) officials turn their heads whiled 
the escape took place?

Shortly after Ray escaped nine 
years ago—and almost a year before * 
King was murdered—one of my best . 
friends (call him SmithHold me the 
details of the escape.

Smith, an inmate, was not the sort of 
man to tell the story outof braggado­
cio or any attempt te enhance himself 
in my eyes. He told me, simply, be­
cause he was worried.

Smith had agreed to help a man 
other than Ray escape in the bread 
box. The other man, also a good friend 
of mine, had planned to escape Sun­
day, April 23, 1967—the day Ray es­
caped. ' . ,

According to Smith, the mutual 
triend was late for work in food service - 
flhat day. . .

I The bread box was sitting m the 
kitchen, empty, he said, when James i 
Earl Ray walked up to the box,u 
climbed in and asked Smith to cover 
lim with the layer of bread, [

i ’ Smith said he’was caught in a bind-d 
le had promised to help the other mas 

escape in the box, but Ray was already 
in it and at any moment a guard might, 
come along and catch Ray.

If that happened, he said, Ray surely 
^ould feel that hesitation on Smith’s c 

। art had caused Ray to be caughttry-1 
rig to escape. Many prisoners also.1 

iould have called Smith a stool-pigeon | 
for “causing” Ray to be caught.

(Indicate page, name of 
newspaper, city and state.)
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z So he covered Ray with bread. Anc? 
later, when the pickup truck that was 
Ito transport the bread to the honbi 
Jfarm arrived, he wheeled the bread 
‘box to the truck and personally loaded 
it (someone else might have noticed, 
and commented oh, the unusual heavi­
ness of the box).

But before the box was loaded on the 
truck, the man who was supposed to 
have escaped arrived and saw that the; 
(•read box was loaded and ready to gp] 
He knew there was no reason why thr 

oread box had to be loaded that early; 
w also knew that Smith wasn’t the 
-sort of man to cop out at the last miri- 

,te—so he surmised that there must b( 
omeone else in the bread box. -■
The man asked Smith who was in th 

bread box. Smith said no one. So thy 
other man walked over to a table and 1 
picked up a French bread knife anc 
declared that with no one in the breac 
box, it would make no difference if he 
ran the knife through the bread.

Just as he started to shove the knife 
into the bread Smith grabbed his arm 
and stopped him. The man just looked 1 

i at Smith for a moment, then walked [ 
away.

Smith tried to talk to him later—to 
try to make him understand that under 

- the circumstances Smith had no 
'choice but to help Ray. But the friend 
walked away from him each time 
Smith tried to explain.

"' So Smith came to me, and I agreed 
to talk with the other man about it. He 
Was irritated that Smith had told me

- about the planned escape, and he re- J 
fused to modify his bitterness toward '

; Smith (the two had been close until the 
incident).

His anger was intensified because he 
~ |wd never liked Ray.
’ • After an extensive search, Smith * 
; was located recently. He was ex­

tremely reluctant to talk about the es­
cape. He finally conceded again that 
he had been involved, but expressed [ 
fear of getting in trouble. Even though 
assured his name would be kept confi- । 
dential and not be printed, later efforts 

ito contact him for additional detail; 
( were unsuccessful.
* ' Smith’s story doesn’t make cleai 
• how or why two inmates would happen 
^to plan identical escapes the same­
day.

. The idea of being smuggled out in. 
J the bread box did not originate with 1 

I either man. . . '
I worked in the prison kitchen in j 

(I । early id60, and even then convicts -1 
joked about using the bread box to es- < 
cape. But no one tried it because it was 
thought that the guards in the truck 
tunnel searched the bread box (the 
truck tunnel is an enclosure where ev­
ery vehicle entering or leaving the 
prison is searched.)

But another friend of mine, Ronald 
Westberg, cultivated the friendship of 
a trusty working in the truck tunnel, 
and learned through him that the 
guards did not search through the 
bread.

Westberg (who hanged himself in 
his prison cell in December, 1970) 
wanted to use the bread box, but he 
was so notorious in the prison that the 
guards and civilian workers in the 
kitchen area generally made sure they 
knew where he was. He might have 
gotten into the box, but he would hav^ 
been missed before the truck came to 
get the bread.

Once a convict is reported missing in 
the prison—especially a convict like 
Westberg who had a record of several 
attempted escapes—all vehicular traf­
fic in the prison is stopped, and every 
vehicle is thoroughly searched.

Smith already had agreed to help 
-Westberg escape in the bread box. Fi­
nally Westberg concluded he would not 
he able to use the bread box and told 
Smith that. .

Westberg had mentioned the bread 
box to me, so it is possible that he told 
others about it—including James Earl 
Ray. Westberg liked Ray, and said of 

' him more than once, “He may be kind 
Of country—but he’s all right (this par­
ticularly referred to the fact that Ray 
was never considered an informer in 
the prison).”

Smith also told me that he had men- 
Otioned to Ray that the bread box was 
m “out” (escape route) and would be 
wed soon. While it may seem fooW 
ipardy to tell anyone—no matter howl 
trustworthy—of an impending escape/
it actually is not uncommon for a con­
siderable number of convicts to knows 
who is planning what. . ;B

One escape while I was there mM| 
Maliy involved 27 men who were sup'S 
posed to use a turinel running from D 
dormitory out under the wail. By the * 
time three men actually escaped 
[through the tunnel there must have J 
been 150 men in the prison who knew! 

I about the tunnel asa possible way out. *

Ray, of course, would have felt that 
the bread box was state property—be- 

- onging to no convict—and that the 
- irst convict to climb into it was thi 

me entitled to use it to escape. ;
It was a matter of first-come, first; 

served, and Ray got there first, ac­
cording to Smith. . •

The theory that Ray was allowed to 
escape was addressed briefly by Wil­
liam Bradford Huie in his'book “He 
Slew the Dreamer.” Huie wrote, 
“Many people, both in the United 
States and abroad, believe that Ray 
was ‘let out’ of the prison on order of 
the Central Intelligence Agency and 
the Federal Bureau of Investigation so 
that these agencies could ‘use him as a 
decoy just as they used Oswald in the 
murder of John F. Kennedy.’”

That* theory has received impetus 
most recently from the Rev. Ralph D. 
Abernathy, who assumed the leader­
ship of the Southern Christian Leader­
ship Conference after King’s assassi­
nation.

Abernathy was responding to a 
lengthy article in Time magazine, 
which on Jan. IT ran excerpts from a 
book to be published later this year. 
The book alleges that Ray was a drug 
dealer who smuggled dope in with the - 
assistance of prison guards and sent 
$100 bills to his brother through a 
guard. .

Abernathy has called for an investi­
gation to determine whether Missouri 
prison officials were involved in the 
escape. The seriousness of Aberna­
thy’s request has been underscored re­
cently by information that King’s bed­
room had been “bugged” by the FBI, 
and that efforts to discredit him had 
been made.

Time magazine said that an investi­
gation it conducted indicated officials 
of the U.S/ Department of Justice 
would request that a special prosecu­
tor or independent commission be 
named to inquire into whether the FBJ 
either bungled the investigation, or ac­
tually helped plan the murder.

However, the Justice department 
announced last week that a 7-month 
inquiry, has disclosed no wrongdoing 
on the part of the FBI. Edward H. 
Levi, attorney general, ordered a con­
tinuing review of all Justice depart­
ment records on the slain civil rights 
leader. ■

The Time magazine article implies 
Ray was a drug dealer of considerable. 
proportions in the prison. The article 
consists of excerpts from a book writ­
ten by George McMillan, a free-lance 

' writer who was commissioned by Lite 
j tie, Brown and Company in 1968 
. write a book, specifically a biographj| 

(as McMillan describes it) of James 
^ Earl Ray.
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fi McMillan states that Ray accumu- 
ated $6,500 acquired through drug 
paling, selling food and whatever else 
!ie could do to make,money.

The Star has been able to confirm 
from inmate sources that Ray did, in­
deed, sell drugs while he was an in­
mate at the Missouri State Penitenti­
ary.

However, Ray’s drug dealing appar-f 
ently took place between early 196? 
and early 196$. A former friend of 
Ray’s, and himself a drug dealer in the 
prison, said he did not hear of Ray sell­
ing any drugs after 1963.

Asked if he had ever known Ray to 
use drugs, he replied, “You know, I 
never did see him use any.”

This source said that Ray dealt in 
drugs of good quality and in significant 
quantities during that period of ap­
proximately one year. Asked if he 
thought Ray could have accumulated 
$7,000 in that 1-year period, he said, “I 
wouldn’t be surprised if he made more 
than that.” ‘

That same man, However, says ada­
mantly that he had never heard Ray 
utter a racist comment. When told a 
book would be published in September 
stating that Ray became “galvanized” 
at the sight of Martin Luther King on 
the television screen, he said:

“Ray wasn’t that kind of person. He 
wouldn’t get upset over anything on 
television. Ray just didn’t care that 
much about anything.”

However, theories that Ray’s drug 
dealings were aided by guards and 
that therefore the prison administra­
tion was involved in the escape'over- 
look an important consideration.

In 1962 and 1963 the warden of the 
prison was E. V. Nash, and the direc­
tor of the department of corrections 
was Col. James Carter. Nash commit­
ted suicide, and Carter resigned fol­
lowing the prison scandals of 1964 
(those scandals resulted after disclo­
sures of gambling, drug dealing and 
murders behind the walls).

Fred Wilkinson, a former Federal 
Bureau of Prisons official, was ap­
pointed director of corrections, anj 
Harold Swenson, another former fed 
Wal official was appointed warden a 
fhe maximum security prison. |

Both men had been on the job sev*

eral years by the time Ray escaped^ 
They had succeeded in curtailing gamj' 
bling and narcotics traffic. There stiH; 
was some gambling and narcotic^ 
traffic, but at a much-reduced level.

So by the time of Ray’s escape, the^ 
people who had been in power while he 
was a drug dealer, were no longer, 
around, and were in no position to 
“let” him out of prison. J
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Inmate Describes Ray's Escape
J.J. Maloney was an inmate at the. April 4, 1968, of Dr. Martin Luther 

Missouri State Penitentiary in 1967 King, Jr., and one that has been re- 
when Janies Earl Ray escaped. Less vived recently, is that Ray was al- 
than two years later Ray was sen- lowed to escape so that he could par­

’ ‘ ‘ ticipate in the slaying of the civil

CH

(J

tenced to prison after he pleaded gu­
ilty to the assassination of Dr. Martin 
Luther King, Jr.

After Ray’s escape in Missouri a fel­
low prisoner who claimed to have 
helped him told Maloney details of the 
escape.

(
 By J. J. Maloney 

, A Member of the Staff
© The Kansas City Star, 1974

How James Earl Ray fled the Mis­
souri State Penitentiary is as much a 
matter of dispute today as it was the 
day of the escape nine years ago.

Ray’s version is that he climbed a 
water pipe and pulled himself to the 
top of the prison wall using a 4-foot 
steel hook stolen from the prison’s 
kitchen.
. Prison officials maintain that he es­
caped hidden in a large box containing 
bread being transported to an honor 
farm.

Apersistent theory since the slaying

rights leader. However, there has been 
no evidence uncovered to support this 
theory.

(Ray pleaded guilty to the murder 
and was sentenced to 99 years in a 
Tennessee state prison. Shortly after­
ward he repudiated his plea and has 
claimed since that he was coerced into 
pleading guilty by Percy Foreman, his 
lawyer. Jerry Ray, a brother, said a 
federal appeals court is expected to 
rule early this month on Ray’s appeal 
seeking a trial.)

Most persons who have investigated 
and written about Ray’s escape have 
accepted the version offered by prison 
officials—that Ray escaped in the box 
being used to transport bread.

It also has been generally conceded 
that in order for Ray to escape in the 
box he had to have an accomplice. The 
bread box measured about 4- by 3- by 
3-feet, and was large enough to allow 
Ray to crouch down inside and then be

covered by a layer ofr fresh-baked 
bread.

Left unanswered until now was 
whether the accomplice was a guard 
or a convict. If he was a convict, did 
prison officials turn their heads while 
the escape took place?

years
|er Ray escaped nine 
nd almost a year before

King was murdered—one of my best 
friends (call him Smith) told me the 
details of the escape.

Smith, an inmate, was not the sort of 
man to tell the story out of braggado­
cio or any attempt to enhance himself 
in my eyes. He told me,; simply, be­

. cause he was worried.
Smith had agreed to help a man 

other thha Ray escape in the bread 
box. The other man, also a good friend 
of mine* had planned to escape Sun­
day, April 23, 1967—the day Ray es­
caped. ,

According to Smith, the mutual 
friend was late for work in food service 
that day.

The bread box was sitting in the 
kitchen, empty, he said, when James 
Earl Ray walked up to the box,

climbed in and asked Smith to cover 
him with the layer of bread. .

Smith said he was caught in a bind— 
he had promised to help the other man 
escape in the box, but Ray was already 
in it and at any moment a guard might 
come along and catch Ray.

If that happened, he said, Ray surely 
would feel that hesitation on Smith’s 
part had paused Ray to be caught try* 
ing to escape. Many prisoners also 
would have called Smith a stool-pigeon 
for “causing” Ray to be caught.

So he covered Ray with bread* And 
later, when the pickup truck that was 
to transport the bread to the honor 
farm arrived, he wheeled the bread 
box to the truck and personally loaded 
it (someone else might have noticed, 
and commented on, the unusual heavi­
ness of the box).

But before the box was loaded on the 
truck, the man who was supposed to 
have escaped arrived and saw that the 
bread box was loaded and ready to go. 
He knew there was no reason why the 
bread box had to be loaded that early. 
He also knew that Smith wasn’t the

See RAY on Page 10
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Ray Esca ped From State ^ 
m a Box

Continued£rnm Page 1
sort of man to cop out at the last min- 
ute—so he surmised that there must be 
someone else in the bread box.

The man asked Smith who was in the 
bread box. Smith said no one. So the 
other man walked over to a table and ■ 
picked up a French bread knife and 

. declared that with no one in the bread 
box. it would make no difference if he 
ran the knife through the bread.

■ - Just as he started th shove the knife 
into the bread Smith grabbed his arm 
and stopped him. The man just looked 
at Smith for a moment, then walked 
away.

Smith tried to talk to him later—to 
try to make him understand that under 
the circumstances Smith had no 
choice but to help Ray. But the friend' 
walked away from him each time 
Smith tried to explain.

So Smith came to me, and I agreed ' 
to talk with the other man about it. He 

- was irritated that Smith had told me/ 
about the planned escape, and he re­
fused to modify his bitterness toward 
Smith (the two had been close until the 
incident).

His anger was intensified because he 
had never liked Ray.

After ah extensive search. Smith 
was located recently. He was ex­
tremely reluctant to talk about the es­
cape. He finally conceded again that 
he had been involved, but expressed 
fear of getting in trouble. Even though 
assured his name would be kept confi­
dential and not be printed, later efforts 
to contact him for additional details 
were unsuccessful.

Smith’s story doesn’t make clear 
how or why two inmates would happen 
to plan identical escapes the same 
day.

The idea of being smuggled out in 
the bread box did not originate with 
either man.

I worked in the prison kitchen in 
early 1960, and even then convicts 
joked about using the bread box to es­
cape. But no one tried it because it was 
thought that the guards in the truck 
tunnel searched the bread box (the 
truck tunnel is an enclosure where ev-, 
ery vehicle catering or leaving the 
prison iseCarehed.)

But another friend of miner Ronald 
Westberg, cultivated the friendship of 
a trusty working in the truck tunnel, 
and learned throj^him that the 
guards did nofsearcITthrough the

Westb«t-M» hanged himself in 
his prison cell in December. 1970) 
wanted to use the bread box, but he 
was so notorious in the prison that the 
guards and civilian workers in the 
kitchen area generally made sure they 
knew where he was. He might have 
gotten into the box, but he would have 
been missed before the truck came to 
get the bread.

Once a convict is reported missing in 
the prison—especially a convict like 
Westberg who had a record of several 
attempted escapes—all vehicular traf­
fic in the prison is stopped, and every 
vehicle isthoroughly searched.

Smith already had agreed to help 
Westberg escape in the bread box. Fi­
nally Westberg concluded he would not 
be able to use the bread box and told 
Smith that.

Westberg had mentioned the bread 
box to me, so it is possible that he told 
others about it—including James Earl 
Ray. Westberg liked Ray, and said of 
him more than once, “Hemay behind 
of country—but he’s all right (this par­
ticularly referred to the fact that Ray 
was never considered an informer in 
the prison).”

. Smith also told me that he had men­
tioned to Ray that the bread box was 
an “out” (Escape route) and would be 
used soon. While it may seem fool­
hardy to toll anyone—no matter how
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it actually is not uncommon for a con- 
sideraWenmunber of convicts to know 
who is planning what.

One escape while I was there ini­
tially involved 27 men who were sup­
posed to use a tunnel running from D 
dormitory out under the wall. By the 
time three men actually escaped 
through the tunnel there must have 
been 150 men in the prison who knew 
about the tunnel as a possible way out.

Ray, of course, would have felt that 
the bread box was state property—be­
longing to no cohvict—and that the 
first convict to climb into it was the
one entitled to use it to escape.

It was a matter of first-come, first- 
served, and Ray got there first, ac­
cording to Smith.

The theory that Ray was allowed to 
escape was addressed briefly by Wil­
liam Bradford Huie in his book “He 
Slew the Dreamer.” Huie wrote, 
“Many people, both, in the United 
States and abroad, believe that Ray 
was Tet out’ of the prison on order of 
the Central Intelligence Agency and_ _ . That same man, however, says ada-
the Federal Bureau of Investigation so mantly that he had never heard Ray 
that these agencies could‘use him aS a utter a racist comment When told a 
decoy just as they used Oswald in the book would be published in September 
murder of John F. Kennedy?” stating that Ray became “galvanized”

That theory has received impetus at the sight of Martin Luther King on 
most recently from the Re^. Ralph D. the television screen, he said: 
Abernathy, whd assumed the leader- “Ray wasn’t that kind of person. He 
ship of the Southern Christian Leader- wouldn’t get upset over anything on 
ship Conference after King’s assassi- television. Ray just didn’t care that
nation. ,

Abernathy was* responding to a 
lengthy article in Time magazine, 
which on Jan. 26 ran excerpts from a 
book to be published later this year. 
The book alleges that Ray was a drug 
dealer who smuggled dope in with the 
assistance of prison guards and sent 
$100 bills to his brother through.a 
guard.

Abernathy has called for an investi­
gation to determine whether Missouri 
prison officials were involved in the 
escape. The seriousness of Aberna­
thy’s request has been underscored re­
cently by information that King’s bed­
room had been “bugged” by the FBI, 
and that efforts to discredit him had
been made. w

Time magazine said that an investi­
gation it conducted indicated officials 
of the U.S. Department of Justice 
would request that a special prosecu­
tor or independent‘commission be 
named to inquire into whether the FBI 
either bungled the investigation, or ac­
tually helped plan the murder. .

However, the Justice department 
announced last week that a 7-month 
inquiry has disclosed no wrongdoing 
on the part of the FBI. Edward H. 
Levi, attorney general, ordered a con­
tinuing review of all Justice depart­
ment records on the slain civil rights 
leader.

i The Time magazine article implies 
i Ray was a drug dealer of considerable 
| proportions in the prison.. The article 
I consists of excerpts from a book writ- 
| ten by George McMillan, a free-lance 
i writer who was commissioned by Lib­
i tie, Brown and Company in 1968 to 
I write a book, spedificafty a biography 
I (as McMillan describes it) of James 
I Earl Ray. J

McMillan states that Ray accumu- eraiyear^JOniBRBy escaped, 
dated $6,500 acquired through drug They had eucceeSEa in curtailing gam­
dealing, selling food and whatever else bling and narcotics traffic. There still 
he could do to make mondy. was'some gambling and narcotics

The Star has been able to confirm traffic* but at a much-reduced level, 
from inmate sources that Ray did, in- So by the time of Ray’s escape, the, 
deed, sell drugs while he was an in- people who bad beeri in power while he 
mate at the Missouri State Penitent}- was a drug dealer, were no longer 
ary. v around, and were in no position to

However, Ray’s drug dealingappar- “let” him out of prison. 4
ently took place between early 1962 r _ _— ----- .-----
and early 1963. A former friend of 
Ray’s, and himselfa drug dealer in. the 
prison* said he did not hear of Ray sell* 
ing any drugs after 1963. '

Asked if he had ever known Ray to 
use drugs,5 he replied, “You know, I 
never did see him use any.”

This source said that Ray dealt in 
drugs of good quality and in significant 
quantities during that period of ap­
proximately one year. Asked if he 
thought Ray could have accumulated 
$7,000 in that 1-year period, he said, “I 
wouldn’t be surprised if he made more 

'thanthat?’ <

much about anything.” *
However, theories that Ray’s drug 

dealings were aided by guards and 
that therefore the prison administra­
tion was involved in the escape over­
look an important consideration.

In 1962 and 1963 the warden of the 
prison was E. V. Nash, and the direc­
tor of the department of corrections, 
was CoL James Carter. Nash commit­
ted suicide, and Carter resigned fol­
lowing the prison scandals of 1964 
(those scandals resulted after disclo­
sures of gambling, drug dealing and 
murders behind the walls).

Fred Wilkinson, a former Federal 
Bureau of Prisons official, was ap­
pointed director of corrections, and 
Harold Swenson, another former fed­
eral official was appointed warden at
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5/3/76

AIRTEL

TO:

FROM

DIRECTOR, FBI (44-38861) 
ATTN: DIVISION 4, SA TOM WEISMAN

SAC/ KANSAS CITY (44-760) C

MURKIN 
HAROLD WEISBURG vs
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, 
USDC, D. C., CIVIL ACTION #751996

Re Kansas City letter to Bureau 4/19/68 entitled 
"MURKIN."

The photograph referred to in relet was taken at 
the Jackson County Sheriff’s Office Jail, Kansas City, 
Missouri, on 3/28/55. According to the FBI Identification 
Record for JAMES EARL RAY, FBI #405 942G, fingerprints were 
submitted by the SO, Kansas City, Missouri, on 3/28/55 and 
this was the same day RAY was photographed when placed in 
the Jackson County Jail. The arrest was for forgery of U.S. 
postal money order. The FBI Identification Record for 
WALTER TERRY RIFE, FBI #4 558 766, reflects RIFE’s finger­
prints were submitted by the SO, Kansas City, Missouri, 
3/28/55 for forged U.S. postal money order.

together 
actually 
but also 
section.

A negative of RAY and RIFE being photographed 
was obtained by SA RAYMOND B. HOWE and the negative 
reflects not only the photograph of RAY and RIFE, 
an extensive area of the Jackson County SO records
The photograph when sent to Bureau and Memphis was

trimmed so only the two individuals appear on the photograph• 
The negative is being retained by Kansas City Office.

Bureau 
Kansas City 
H:jrt
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Reviews of files furnished by Mr JAMP are summarized as

follows:

Re:

RAY

Missouri Department of Corrections

was received at the MSP on 3/17/60

on 4/23/67. His cell assignments at the

4/12/60

7/28/60

3/13/61

”B”

K-178;

K-118;

11/22/61, Segregation, 6 months;

5/25/62, B-16;

6/8/62, E-Hall Segregation

7/25/62,

8/10/62

8/15/62 K-168:

3/8/63, K-172;

During the seven years, one month and

#00416

and he escaped from the MSP

were as follow

1U/22/65,

12/16/65 K-10:

3/4/66, J-42;

3/14/66, Maximum

11/17/66, C-17;

1/18/67, K-135

six days RAY was

security;

confined in

the MSP, he occupied a 2-man cell on only three different occasions, for

a total of only six months, the last time being 11/17/66 - 1/18/67, and

the previous time being 5/25/62 - 6/8/62 and 4/12/60 - 7/28/60

RAY had served in the U Army from 2/19/46 until 12/23/48, and

his discharge was due to ’’inaptness and lack of adaptability for

military service.” He had foreign service from 7/18/46 until 12/21/48

His army Serial Number was 16163129

Following his discharge from the Army, he was arrested in Los

Angeles, Calif rnia, on 10/11/49, Los Angeles Sheriff’s Department

#B-119908 and Los Anoles Police Depa t ent #1396^8
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The ledger for KAY’s financial account at the MSP revealed a

modest, active account, with no balance over $95.00 (highest being

5/23/63)

pureha e

RAY

and no deposit over

radio from the

attempted to escape

$65.00 (4/16/63). The card reveals the

canteen on 4/21/67

over the MSP walls on 11/6/61. He hid out

in the ISP from 3/11/66 to 3/12/66 in

As of 5/65, he was listed as weighing

another apparent escape attempt

133 pounds

The length of his foot was listed as 12 inches

When he was apprehended inside the MSP walls, where he had been

hiding, on 3/13/66, RAY was found to have three $1.00 bills and 15b in

change

he had

on his person, along with a plastic bag with an assortment of

A report dated 3/15/66 regarding the pills found on RaY indie ted

capsule of Librium (described as a tranquilizer);

and anti-pyretic medication); two circular

to be Spirine, 50-mg (a tranquilizer); four

be Mellaril

(described as a common headache

red-colored tablets, believed

greenish tablets, believed to

a tranquilizer); and the remnant of a capsule

Librium capsule

In 6/65, AY was written-up for concealing

from the main kitchen to the

the cart

ad room man” in the MSP main

contraband on a food

discovered

kitchen, or working in

the bakery, from 1962-65

reassigned to food service

He had various other ass ignments,

on 1/12/67. On his work and training report

dated 4/1/67, by Food Supervisor EDWaRD PAULTON, RAY was described as a

’’bread slicer” and as ’’doing a wonderful job.” He was assigned in this

job also on the date of his escape, 4/23/67
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The ledger for RAY’s financial account at the MSP revealed a

modest, active account, with no balance over $95.00 (highest being

5/23/63)

pureha e

and no deposit over $65.00 (4/16/63). The card reveals the

radio from the canteen on 4/21/67

RAY attemoted to escape over the MSP walls on 11/6/61. He hid out

in the MSP from 3/11/66 to 3/12/66 in

As of 5/65, he was listed as weighing

another apparent escape attempt

153 pounds

The length of his foot was listed as 12 inches

When he was apprehended inside the MSP walls, where he had been

hiding, on 3/13/66, RAY was found to have three $1.00 bills and 15b in

change

he had

on his person, along with a plastic bag with an assortment of

A report dated 3/15/66 regarding the pills found on RaY indicated

capsule of Librium (described as a tranquilizer); four

wuite tablets believed to be SapKi Empirims

and anti-pyretic medication); two circular

(described as a common headache

red-colored tablets, believed

to be Spirine, greenish tablets, believed to

be Mellaril, 100-mg (a tranquilizer); and the remnant of a capsule

Librium capsule

In 6/65, AY was written-up for concealing

from the main kitchen to the

contraband on a food

discovered

RAY was a ’’bread room man” in the MSP main kitchen, or working in

the bakery, from 1962-65 He had various other assignments, and was

reassigned to food service on 1/12/67. On his work and training reoort

dated 4/1/67, by Food Supervisor EDWaRD PAULTON, RAY was described as a

’’bread slicer” and as ’’doing a wonderful job.” He was assigned in this

job also on the date of his escape, 4/23/67
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The file on AY contained the following reports related to his

escape on 4/23/67:

DONALD W. WYRICK, now Warden, reported 6/19/68 that inmate RONALD

#71859, told him that inmate DONALD RY

helped RAY in his escape, covering him with bread

in a bread box. This memo also had a hotation on

tion had been given to the FBI

JOHNSON, #10987, had

after RAY had hidden

it that this informa­

BERNARD PESGHaNG, cook, MSP, Renz Farm, had noted when the bread

arrived on the bradd truck from

it was ’’all broken up and unfit

noted in the reprimand PESCIANG

H

the MSP at the RentxFarm on 4/23/67

for human consumption.’* This fact v/as

received dated 5/10/67 from then warden

Iso reprimanded the guard who drove the bread truck out of

the MSP on 4/23/67. This guard lD BURKH/iRDT, was ailing

to check the loading of the bread and to verify the number of loaves

loaded was the number on the bread order, and for failing to report the

bread’s being broken up

was dated 5/10/67

guard EZRA SHELTON

noted the bread

the bread order

fill the box

box was

was for

when it arrived at the Renz Farm. This reprimand

reprimanded by SWENSON on 5/10/67

filled, and it

40 loaves, and

Guard Officer HAROLD

for failing to report RAY

at the proper time

The reports indicate

SCHAEFER was

he had

should have been only 2/3 full, as

it took 60 loaves to completely

reprimanded by SWENSON on 5/10/67

missing and/not reporting to his wrk assignment

the

Port” at 8:16 a.m., and Guard

inmate ..AY out of the kitchen

Renz Farm bread truck went out the ’’Sally

Officer JOHNNIE PETREE said that he let

gate at approximately this time

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176



PETREE said RaY . s th in the kitchen eating breakfust sometime

between 6:30 a.m

one of his duties

recreation yard

and 7:30 a.m. After eating, RAY sliced some bread,

tor , and left the kitchen, supposedly for the

PETREE reported he last saw RAY going out the kitchen

as ’’Mainline” (larger part of the MSP inmates eating a meal at

time) was go ng out to the yard, and he assumed RAY was on the

when RAY did not report for work at 11:00 a.m., and he did not

RAY's absence to his relief officer, HAROLD SCHAFFER when PETR

at noon

one

yard

renortX

went

Officer SCHAFFER did not check further, though he missed RAY

as he found out RAY had been in the kitchen in the morning and had his

work done, and it was customary to allow yard to inmates when their

work was finished

It was 3:2o p.m., , when ^t

the MSr was advised (not shown by whom) that there had been an escape

from the MSP. He was told if security was not alerted, there would be

It was then learned that RAY, assigned to the main

kitchen to 7:00 p.m had not reported for work at

11:00 a.m., and was missing from

A search of the grounds

inside and out was concur ted

still was

the walls

to the

and

the 5:00 p.m. count

inspect ion of the walls fronj both

without any results. It was assumed, and

as of 4/24/67 that RAY was either concealed somewhere inside

at the MSP or had escaped without leaving any visible siuns

mechanics of the escape

ruriuerxa reports showed chat rhe Renz Farm rrucK came through the

"Sany Port” at the ndr at approximately 8:0u a.m., , to piCK up

the bread for rhe uenz Farm from the mSP Kitchen/bakery. The truck came

back through rhe ’’Sally Port” going out at approximately 8:16 a.m. The
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truck stopped once enroute Renz Farm for another delivery of bread, in

a separate box

Inmate lLOiD k

at the residence of GARx. mILLS (not further identified) 
the

RENO, #10970, rode in the cab of/truck with the truck

driver, ALFRED BURKHVRDi. REDO got in the back of the truck and handed

MILLS’ box to BURKHARDT, and BURKHARDT delivered the box. The truck

then proceeded on to the Renz Farm, and it is documented that the bread

in the Renz Farm bread box was found to be "all broken up” when it was

delivered to the Renz Farm, on 4/23/67

RAY had been scheduled for an appearance at a hearing on a writ

at the Missouri Supreme Court on 4/26/67, as he had received special

permission to be present at for the arguments in that matter

previously been out to the Cole County Circuit Court on escape charges,

etc., cn 4/14/66, 8/9/66, 7/12/66, 9/6/66, 11/21/66, 1/16/67 and 2/20/67 
for evaluation

He had been out to State Hospital #1, Fulton,/on 9/8/66 until returned

to the MSP on 10/21/66. He was also out to the U

Jefferson City on 9/6/63

The wanted poster prepared at the MSP for RAY

Convict” was received at the MSP records office on

District Court in

as an ’’Escaped

5/17/67 from the

print shop, and the print shop

fingerprints of inmate GHARLE

EASLEY had escaped on 5/7/67

had apparently inadvertently placed

GENE EASLEY on RAY’s wanted poster

By letter of 11/30/67, the IMP advised

the Kansas City, Mo., Police Department, that they were sending the

’’final copy” of the escape notice on RAY, since the fingerprints on the

original notice were not RAY’s, and that Police Department had apparently

not received a previous change correcting the error. The original wanted

;oster gave RuY’s FBI # as 30 6 443 A, jnm ently

State Highway Patrol transcript of arrest record

arrived at the MSP, while the FBI identification

taken from a Missouri

rece ved af er RAY

record in file shows RAY’s
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FBI #405 94 2 G. The MSP Records Office sent a letter to the U. S

Attorney for the Western district of Missouri on 6/8/67, requesting 
(UFAG)

federal process on RAY for Unlawful Flight to Avoid Confinement/ On 

6/19/67, the U. S. Attorney, F. RUSSELL MILLIN, authorized UFAC process 

be issued on RAY*

On 4/22/68, ORLAN ROSE, #75723, inmate at the ISP, wrote a suggested 

newspaper article he thought might in uce RAY to surrender himself if it 

could be printed.

At about 2:00 a.m., 5/3/68, Sgt. K. BENBERGER. at the MSP Control 

Center, according to a memo submitted by BEMBERGER, received a telephone 

call from a man’1 identifying himself as GERALD BUSH from Birmingham. He 

wanted to know if we had an inmate here by name of JOSEPH AUSTIN. He 

said that this JOSEPH AUSTIN was an associate of JAPES RAY who was here.” 

BEMBERG R indicated ’’GERALD BUSH” would not further identify himself, and 

that he told BUSH he would have to call back during regular business 

hours when the records office was open, aid gave him no information.

A note in the file from Warden SWENSON indicated that GEORGE JONES, 

#05516, BOBBY POWELL, #13174 and GARY HARKINS, #04870, allegedly knew of 

RAY’s escape in bread delivery to Renz Farm*

RE: DONALD RAY JOHNSON
Missouri Depart ent of Corrections #10987

JOHNSON was received at the MSP on 10/5/65 , and he is a w^ite male, 

born Eis home was West Plains, Mo., and he was paroled from the 

MSP on 8/9/66, spending most of his time in "ansas City, Mo., until he w as 

returned to the MSP as a parole violator on 2/8/67 from Clay County, 

Missouri. He was previously committee! to the Missouri Training School 

for Boys, Boonville, Mo., then was received at the Missouri Intermediate
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eformatory on 3/9/60 but escaped on 6/30/60 from that institution by

stealing a dump truck. He was received at the MSP on 2/19/64 from 
added

Howell County,/bHgaH a two-years sentence for escape, and started a

15-year sentence for armed robbery from Clay County on 2/8/67. He was

in cell K-134 and assigned to food service as of 3/6/67. He had also

worked in the bakery and bread crew in t he MSP in 1962, and his ’’Work

and Training Report” dated 4/1/67 indicated he was a ’’bread slicer” in

the main kitchen at the MSP. He also worked on the 5th

Hospital, 10/20/65 - 4/28/66 still assigned in the main kitchen

as a ’’bread room man” on 7/1/67

JOHNSON and his brother, JOE KENNETH JOHNSON, were

floor of the MSP

said by the

Sheriff of Clay County to have been overheard to say they would escape

and would hurt anyone who got in their way. They had taken part in an

armed robbery in Clay County. JOE was also sentenced to the MSP, and

on 11/20/67, DONALD JOIN SON requested a cell change from K-134 to J—115

next to his brother’s cell. This move was approved, 12/5/67

had requested job changes, to the Power Plant, on 8/28/67 and

Plant, 9/28/67

DONALD JOHN® was paroled from the MSP on 6/3/74, and he

home offer then with a friend, ALBERT S. TDIBROOK, 245 Brent

DONaID

to the Soap

a

Dumas,

Arkansas, and employment at McGraw-Edison in Dumas. His brother, JOE

KENNETH JOHNSON, # 23500, was in the MSP in 4/73, on a 10-year sentence

He listed the following relatives and friends:

Father, 
Brother 
S isters

EVERETT JOHNSON 
JANES JOHNSON*

919 S. iHkKXHH^: Walker, W st Plains, Mo.;
913 E, Dale,

Mrs. MELVIN ROUSEY or ROUSSY
ringtie Id., Mo.;
631 Chestnut, Springfield and

BONNIE ROWLETT, 509 N. Walnut, Willow Springs, Mo 
d, CLARICE WELTY, 920 S. Walker, West Plains. Mo.

There was nothing in his file wWch shows any specific contact with

though it is noted BAY was in cell K-135 as of 1/18/67, and both were
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employed in the kitchen as ’’bread slicers.”

RE: GARY WAY WE IhkRKINS
Missouri Department of Corrections #21231 and 04870

HARKINS was received at the MSP on 5/18/62 and served a ten-year 

sentence for burglary and stealing under MSP #04870 until discharged 

on 7/7/67. He was returned to the MSP on 10/19/71 on a 25-years sentence 

from Butler County for armed robbery, involving a bank robbery, and he
bom

remains confined on that sentence with MSP#21231.He is a white male, / 

He had been received at the Missouri Intermediate Reformatory on 

7/3/57 on a 5 years sentence for burglary and stealing, and he escaped 

on 1/12/59, returned on 1/20/59. He escaped on 9/25/60 from the State 

Hospital at Fulton, Mo., was returned on 9/28/60 and discharged from the 

MiP on 3/20/61. He previously had been committed in 1955 to the Missouri 

Training School for Boys at Boonville.

After his release from the MSP on 7/7/67, it is indicated that he 

went to St. Louis, Mo., lived alone for a while then ./as married.

HARKINS* co-defendants in the bank robbery case, ROB .AT POWELL, 

#16960, was paroled to a federal detainer on 7/7/75, and FRED LEON KIMBLE, 

#16771, was paroled on 6/30/75, HARKINS had been found incompetent to 

stand trial in the U. S. District Court at Memphis, Tenn., in 1969, on a 

different bank robbery charge. HAPJCINS had escaped three times from the 

jail at Farmington, Missouri.

There is no information in Bis file shuwing any specific contact he 

had with JAMIA’ ..MAL RaY.
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RAYMOND CURTIS
Missouri Department of Corrections #04849 

from the Renz Farm
S was received at the MSP on 5/15/62. He escaped/on 7/16/64 and

;.as returned on 7/19/64

the MSP show that he wa

cation Center, Jackson,

murder, their #A-73862

CURTIS served in the U

Discharge, aid he spent

robbery conviction. He

a store.”

He was paroled on 6/27/66, and the records in

received at the Georgia Diagnostic and Classifi-

Georgia,

He is a

Army

on 3/12/69, to serve a life sentence for

white male, born at Dalton, Ga

1944-47

time in the U

was written up in

receiving a Dishonorable

Penitentiary on a 1962 bank

he MSP on 9/23/65 for ’’run ing

ile con ains no information showing any specific contact

V

EILLY MAC MILES
Missouri Department of Corrections #07206

M’IMS was received at the MSP on 8/16/63; paroled 9/29/64 and

returned as a parole violator on 5/31/66. He was discharged from the

MSP on 1/20/67. His file contains no information showing any specific

contact with PAY

RE: JAMES RICHARD ESSON
Missouri Department of Corrections #73789

received ±the MSP on 4/28/58 on a robbery sentence and

was released on 8/1/72, described as an "ideal inmate.” He was picked

up on his release by the London, Ohio, Correctional Authorities for

extradition back to Ohio for completion of a life sentence. His file

contains no information showing any specific contact with Rh
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RE: ROBERT LYNN POWELL, ,
Missouri Department of Gorre tions #16960

POWELL was received at the MSP on 5/14/69 on a 25~years sentence

for armed robbery from Stoddard County, and

a federal sentence and as of 7/17/75 was at

Leavenworth, Kansas under #88777-132. He is

He had previously been received at the

he was paroled on 7/7/75 to

the U Penitentiary,

a white male, born

MSP on 1/16/67 on a two

years sentence for burglary and stealing, which he served under #13174

and he was discharged from that sentence on 2/1/68, when hew ent to

Louis, Mo., and lived with a girlfriend for several

using aliases of JACK BYRON PORTER on 8/5/68 and 8/8/68

by the Sheriff’s Office at Everett, Washington. He was

weeks. He was

when arrested

also using

aliases and secured identification papers in other names when a fugitive

in 2/65, and he

apprehended

POWELL was

FRED LEON KIMBIE

On

in cell

KELLEY

declin d to identify where he got his

involved in a bank robbery at Puxico

and GARY WAYNE IL On 1/17/69

papers after b eing

Mo., on 9/3/63, with

he escaped from the

in Stoddard County, Mo., and was later apprehended in Alabama

2/15/67, Pa JELL was assigned to food service in the MSP andw

K-118

2486 Almougus

and KELLEY had served

3/9/67, he was He had a GEORGE

Dr., on cis visitors/mail list

time in the MSP, 1963-65

POVELL’s file contained no specific indication of contact wife RAY

other than work and hall assignments
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GEORGE HAROLD JONES
Missouri Department of Corrections #05516

JONESserved time in the Missouri Intermediate Reformatory on a

transfer from the Missouri Training School for Boys at Boonville from

4/1/53 until 3/27/54, when he was paroled. He was returned to the

reformatory

5/23/58 and

as a parole

on 12/20/57, escaped 5/22/58, and returned to the MSP on

assigned MSP# 73948. He was paroled on 11/3/60, returned

viol tor on 8/25/61 and discharged on 9/26/62, to b gin a

new sentence under #05516. He escaped on 9/23/64 while assigned to th

MTGM, was apprehended 10/27/64, did time in the State Penitentiary at 
6/28/66,

Nashville . Tennessee

was discharged on 9/8/69

JONES was assigned to

at As of 4/7/67

He was received at the U. S. Penitentiary

at Leavenworth UH in 11/71, #86919-132

food service, celled in K-142, as of 7/8/66

he was assigned to food service, having

previously been in the furniture factory and in cell F-100 as of 1/9/67

He requested assignmdnt to cell K-34 on 5/15/67, since K-hall was the hall

for food service workers. He was on the bread crew in the bakery as of

1/1/67, and previousfy had worked there in 1961-62. He was head baker in

the main kitchen at the MSP 7/68 and 1/1/69, and was described as the

"assistant head baker for several months” in reoort of 7/1/67

JONES was issued size”9 III'’shoes on 7/26/66 in clothing issue at

the MSP. JONES’s foot was listed as 11 inches long. He was issued size

” shoes on 2/2/67 and again on 6/9/67 ued size 34

walking shorts and one pair socks, 4/17/67

JOI file shows a renort regarding an incident on 12/16/68

when EARL PRATTE, Cook II, was found to be carrying a sealed letter

from JONES to a Mr. and Mrs. SEWELL, 7401 Wise Ave., Richmond Heights

wnich JOKES wanted PRaTTE to Mail for him outside the MSP
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PRATTE admitted also that JONES had also offered PRATTE $100 to bring 

drugs into the MsP for JONES.

JONES was involved in a drug possession charge in t he MSP in 

1966, when he was found to be in possession of some 100-mg. Mellaril 

tablets and a hypodermic needle.

JONES listed relatives as follows:

Wife, Mrs. LINjA JONES, 2338 So* 9th St., St. Louis, Mo., or 
Rt. 1, Cedar Hills, Mo.;

Sister, JEU JONES, 11j Public Sq., Nashville, Tenn., 1966; 
Step-mother, BERTHE JONES, Rt. 1, Box 358, Hillsboro, Mo. 
No specific contact with JAMIES EARL RaY was merit zoned in JONES’sfile. 
RE: ‘CARL B. DRAKE, 

Missouri Department of Corrections #00189

DRAKE was received at the MSP on 2/5/60 from St. Louis City and 

discharged on 6/1/65. He had no kitchen or bakery assignments listed 

after 1960. His wife, BETTY DRAKE, resided at 1308 Mill St., Poplar 

Bluff, Mo., with his mother^in-law, LEIA PUCE.

His file contained no specific reference to contact with JAMES LUL

RE: JOSEPH SEI3ERT
Missouri Departmentof Corrections #09111

SEIBERT was received at the MSP on 10/2/64 from Jackson County, 

for murder. He escaped from the Jackson County Jail in Kansas City 

on 10/31/67 while out on a writ. He later was apprehended in Oklahoma 

and later escaped from the Oklahoma State Penitentiary. He was then 
to 25 years sentence 

arrested in Tennessee and was sentenced/for bank robbery in U. J. 

District Court, estern District of Tennessee, to commence 10/24/75 

and serve with the state cime on his return to the MSP on 11/14/75.

SEIBERT had attempted to escape 3/11/66, when he 

television room, on the same date when J UES EARL itW 

MSP. Both had placed a ’’dummy” made of bedding under 

their bunks in that apparent escape atte pt. SEIBERT
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a^ain on 11/3/66, when he used a hand-made ladder, and on 8/27/b5, he 

threw a fire bomb at a tower at the wall in an escape attempt.

SEIBERT worked on the bread crew in food service in the main 

kitchen at the MSP as of 7/1/65.

He was sent to maximum security for his escape attempt on 11/3/66, 

but as of 5/31/67, he was back in food service in the MSP, celling in 

K-60.

There were no other specific references involving JAMES RAY

in SEIBMRT’s file.

RE: RONALD WEST BERG
Missouri Department of Corrections #71859

cESTBERG was received at the MSP on 12/27/56 from Laclede County 

on a 25 years sentence for Assault With Intent to Kill with Malice. He 

had additional sentences impdsed later in actions in Cole County involving 

violence to a guard and murdering another inmate at the MSP.

WBST3ERG hanged himself in his cell at the MSP on 11/2/70, and his 

death was ruled a suicide by the coroner.

■WESTBERG had attempted escape from the MSP, one occasion involving 

the use of a homemade pistol on 9/19/59. He had an accomplice then, and 

this inmate, ROLLIE LASTER, #02059, remained a close associate in the 

MSP of WESTBERG. ALVIN WRIGHT, #17755, close friend of UEST3ERG, was 

attacked by two Negro inmates in the MSP, and MSP officials thought that
Negro

WESTBERG would retaliate against these/inmates since he was a close friend 

of WRIGHT. The psychological profiles regarding WESTBERG included 

information of hostile reaction toward unnamed persons for their ’’racial 

profanity” toward his motaer. His file contains information regarding

self-inflicted wounds, 

involvement with other 

5/6/69 and on the same

uis potential suicide-prone outlook and homosexual 

inmates. He killed inmate FRED WiRLING, #08921, on 

date gave a knife to inmate DELVIN LOUTHAIN ,#14743,
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Kansas City, Missouri

May 7, 1976

ASSASSINATION OF 
MARTIN LUTHER KIHG. JR 
CIVIL RIGHTS

On April 2$, 1976, Mr* Gbot§6 M» Csspi Deputy DlF@ct$r| 
Missouri Department of Social Services, Jefferson City, Missouri, 
was contacted and receipt of his letter of April 13, 1976 to 
FBI Director Clarence M. Kelley was acknowledged. This letter 
reads as follows:

Dear Mr. Kelley:

”It is our understanding that the Attorney Central has 
under consideration a review of the events that led up to 
the death of the late Dr. Martin Luther King. Either as 
part of that review, or as an independent review, we 
request that you initiate an investigation into the 
activities of James Earl Ray while he was an inmate at 
the Missouri State Penitentiary In the early and mid* 
1960’s, including his escape from that institution in 
1976.

'Recently wo reviewed the facts available to us and 
concluded that Janes Hari Ray1# escape did not involve 
the complicity of Missouri prison officials and that 
he was not a Merchant*’ within the PenitentIrv. However 
the State of Missouri has neither the resources nor the 
legal authority to conduct an investigation that could 
lead to a review of facts and interviews outside the 
State of Missouri* As part of your investigation, we 
ask that you review the material in our possession* We, 
of course, do not have access to the material and 
Information that your agency and the U. S* Attorney’s 
Office developed in the course of the investigation and 
the prosecution of James Bari Ray, and therefore think 
that your office is in the best position to be abso­
lutely sure that no stone has beta loft unturned.

6 - Bureau
- Memphis (44-1987)(Info)
r USA, Kansas City, Missouri
A Kansas City (44-760)
W:jb

Ok document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the
s/t is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its 

contents are not to be distributed outside your agency
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ASSASSINATION OF
WTIK'WTHB KIM, JR

' "We. stand ready to assist and cooperate-with you and look 
forward/to .hearing fro® you as soon as . you haw Made'# 
decision on the course of action you wish "-to take. . z

( Very truly yours,

. GBORGE M. CAMP . . ’ '
' Deputy Director*1 . ■

Mr. Camp stated that he is in charge of the Division 
of Corrections of the Missouri Department of Social Services, 
and handling of the captioned matter insofar as his agency 
is concerned has been delegated to hi& by Mr. Lawrence L. 
Graham, Director of-the Department of Social Services. .

Mr. Camp advised that he and his- staff reviewed files 
and conducted interviews of -available appropriate personae!, 
and former personnel of the Missouri State Penitentiary (MSP),
and some inmates of the MSP regarding James Earl Hay 
his escape from the MSP, and regarding the murder of

Mr. Cop stated that after these inquiries 
reviews, it was the conclusion of Missouri officials

and
Or. King♦

and file
that Ray’s

escape from the MSP was due to the laxity of some employees,
and Ray took advantage of the laxity, lie said he found no . 
evidence of a conspiracy to aid Ray’s escape involving MSP 
personnel.

Mr. Camp said that in regard to allegations that 
Ray was running-. -racket# in the MSP, financing himself through 
illegal acts within the MSP, supposedly aided by unidentified 
guard personnel, it was the conclusion after the study that 
such activity was not indicated by facts available, and no 
evidence was found to support such allegations. He noted that 
Ray had only one misconduct report, other than write-ups 
regarding his escape attempts, and that was an incident 
involving Ray’s apparent attempt to take contraband into 
the hospital at the MSP on a food cart. He further noted 
that a review of Ray’s ledger account, which shows the 
activity of the money coming into and disbursed fro® his 
account at the MSP treasurer’s office, revealed the total

2
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ASSASSINATION OP
MARTIN LUTHER IINO, JR.

amount of Money that came into his account during the time 
he was at the MSP, 1960-67, was about #900. Ho noted that 
some of Ruy’s earnings frog working in prison jobs and Money 
sent by family wot back out to family , and the rest was 
spent in the MSP commissary and for reading material.

Mr. Camp noted that the MSP official who was deeded
nost knowledgeable regarding the innate population at the MSP 
during the period of tiae of HH-67, and who was in a position 
to know, and did know which inmates were involved in rackets 
as a merchant or dealer in contraband, and possessed of 
influence over inmate population in the MSP, was Major B. J. 
Poiry. He said Infomation from Major Poiry was to the effect 
that Ray was a nobody' and was distinguished by nothing except 
that ’ke wanted to escape fm the MSP ?‘

Mr. Camp advised that nothing was seen in all his
investigation to relate Ray's escape to the murder of Martin 
L. King. He noted no information indicating that Ray was a 
racist.

Mr. Camp stated that the MSP staff should have been
watching Ray more closely in view of his previous escape attempts 
at the MSP. He believes that the prison officials* decision 
to cancel a suggestion that the employees identified as lax 
in their duties, which probably led to Ray being able to 
escape, in addition to the letters of reprimand they did 
receive, was an insufficiency of management in not taking 
sore severe administrative action against those employees. 
He noted, however, that at the time of the escape, it could 
not have been known that Ray later would kill King.

Mr. Camp said that the ’Western Union Mailgram”
received by Missouri Governor Christopher S« Bond at Jefferson 
City on February 6, 1976 from Reverend Emanuel Cleaver, 
Executive Director, Southern Christian Leadership Conference 
(SCU), referred to the January 26, 1976 issue ofTino 
magazine and requested investigation regarding RavTr'escape 
and activities In the MSP. He believes the SCLC hypothesised 
that the MSP staff helped Ray run rackets in the MSP to finance 
himself on his escape in a plot to kill King.

He noted that the Time magazine article was arranged
by the publicity agent for George McMillian, 12 Hilliard Street, 
Cambridge, Massachusetts, to help promote his book on Ray,
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ASSASSIMTIOM OF
MARTIH LOWER II#, JR. .

and King1# assassination. He said that it was his under 
standing that McMillian had stated that he had refused 
to give any assistance to the FBI when contacted for 
information he might have regarding the allegations 
mentioned above* .

McMillian used as a source a former MSP innate 
named Raymond Curtis according to Mr, Camp, who noted that 
Curtis had been gone from the MSP about one year before Ray 
escaped.

Mr* Camp further advised that he had received a 
letter dated January 21, 1970 from Lou Miller, former MSP 
innate, who told Camp that he had been editor of the inmate 
newspaper at the MSP, the d^ftoun^Jouimal, when Ray was in 
the MSP. Miller stated ttrnfTSnSSiriS^^ ’’ran a card 
game with him** for a period of tine net specified in the 
MSP* Miller is now residing at the Kirby Ho tel, 233 Horth 
Main, Springfield, Missouri, according to Mr* Camp.

Mr, Camp pointed out that his investigation in 
this natter did not include interviews with Miller or 
Curtis, nor did he interview Fred Wilkinson, Director of 
the Department of Corrections In 1967, who now lives in 
North Carolina* lie said that he believes that any further 
investigation in this natter should include interviews with 
the above-named persons, as well as the MSP personnel repri* 
sanded in this natter at the time, Major Poiry, former MSP 
Warden H. R* Swenson and with James Earl Ray*

Mr. Camp furnished copies of the following items 
from his file on this natter, which are attached to this 
uenorandun:

nMailgr«n to Governor Bend from Reverend Bmwl 
Cleaver, supra, February S, 1976;

Letter dated January 2S, 1976 to Ms* Heather 
Kilpatrick, Time-Life Building, Hew York City, Hew York 
from Mr. Caap;

Cleaver,

Ray file

Letter dated February 26, 1976 to Reverend 
supra, from Mr* Camp;

Memorandum dated February 27, 1976 to Janes Earl 
from Mr. Camp*
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ASSASSIWHW OF
MARTIN LUTHER MIMO, A

Th# Material utilised by Mr* Gamp la his investigation
as outlined in his seBoraadua dated February 27, 1976, was re­
viewed by the Federal Moreau at Investigation at Mr. Campus 
Office on April 2$ sad April 30, 197 6 sad May 3 and May 4, 19 7 6. 
This review revealed no information pertinent to this invest!- 
gation which has not already been available, or in variance 
with theconclusions reached by Mr. Canp, as outlined above.

3*
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GOVERNOR CHRISTOPHER S BOND 
STATE CAPITOL
JEFFERSON CITY MO 65101 'Feb 6 1976

GOY£Ri\’q^^ OFFi

DEAR GOVERNOR BOND
IN ITS JANUARY 26 ADDITION, TIME 
FROM GEORGE MCMILLIAN’S UPCOMING BOOK ON THF ASSASSINATION OF DOCTOR
MARTIN LUTHER KING JUNIOR, THE FOUNDER OF THE SOUTHERN CHRISTIAN 
LEADERSHIP CONFERENCE IN His BOOK, mcmilLIAN CHARGES THAT JAMES EARL 
RAY, DOCTOR KING’S ALLEGED ASSASSIN, PLOTTED AND FINANCED THF mijrdFP OF

PRISON, MCMILLIAN, WHO RESEARCHING FOR his BOOK
EVEN FURTHER BY SUGGESTING THAT SEVERAL PRISON GUARDS PROVIDED PAY with 
WHATEVER ASSISTANCE V.! a S NECESSARY TO MAINTAIN A LUCRATIVE PRISON DRUG 
BUSINESS. MCMILLIAN CLAIMS THAT RAY HAD EARNED OVER 7 THOUSAND DOLLARS 
BY THE TIME OF HIS ESCAPE AND THAT HE USED THIS MONEY FOR ASSASSINATION 
PLANS.
WHETHER OR NOT MCMILLIAN’S BOOK 1$ COMPLETELY RELIABLE IS SECONDARY, 
THE FACT THAT TIME MAGAZINE, ONE THE NATION’S MOST PRESTIGIOUS AND 
WIDELY CIRCULATED PUBLICATION'S had ENOUGH CONFIDENCE IN mcmilLIAN TO 
PRINT THE STORY, IS IN ITSELF WORTHY OF OUR ATTENTION, SINCE TtJE 
REVELATION THAT J EDGAR HOOVER USED THE FBI IN A VICIOUS ATTEMPT TO 
DISCREDIT DOCTOR KING, THE HARRIS POLL REPORTS THAT 60 PERCENT OF THE 
POPULATION BELIEVE THAT DOCTOR KING’S DEATH WAS THE RESULT OF A 
CONSPIRACY. THF AMERICA PUBLIC, AS YOU WELL KNOW, HAS, WITH MUCH
JUSTIFICATION, BECOME CYNICAL AND SUSPICIOUS.
FURTHERED THIS CYNCISIH and SUSPICION.
IF, AS MANY HAVE COME TO BELIEVE, DOCTOR KING 
CONCEIVED IM JEFFERSON CITY AND CONSHmATED IN

The STORY In TImF HAS

S ASSASSINATION V. aS

A PRISON
, A THOROUGH
LRCHAN'T And HIS

EMOTIONAL ISSUE.
THE SOUTHERN CHRISTIAN LEADERSHIP CONFERENCE IS THEREFORE making ThF 
FOLLOWING REQUESTS!
1 THAT THE FINDINGS OF THE OFFICIAL INVESTIGATION OF JAMES FARL PAY’S 
ESCAPE FROM THE MISSOURI STATE PENITENTIARY RE PRESENTED TO SCLC AND
HADE PUBLIC.
2 THAT THE STATE ATTORNEY GENERAL 
MCHJLLJAN in REGARD TO DRUG SALLS 
THAT PRISON GUARDS may have AIDED
3 THAT THERE PE Pi PL IC DISCLOSURE

i

PAY IN HIS ESCAPE.
OF ANY actions taken hy PRISON

OFFICIALS or GOVERNOR KARREN hearnES AFTER They LEARNED That DOCTOR 
KING’S ASSASSIN WAS A MISSOURI STATE PRISON ESCAPEE.
SCLC, NEEDLESS TO SAY IS HOPING FOR A POSITIVE and PROMPT RESPONSE.
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GEORGE M. CAMP
DEPUTY DIRECTOR

STATE OF MISSOURI

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES
Jofferson City

January 28, 1976

Ms. Heather Kilpatrick •
Time-Life Building 
Rockerfeller Center .
New York City, N. Y.

Dear Ms. Kilpatrick:

As head of Missouri’s prison system, I was disturbed to read 
the article on the assassination of Martin Luther King in 
the Time edition of January 26, 1976.

In one section of this article, you used excerpts from George 
McMillan's unpublished book to make both inaccurate and mis­
leading implications and statements concerning Missouri's 
corrections system. Concerning James Earl Rays' confinement 
in the Missouri State Penitentiary, you stated that prison 
authorities were not helpful in documenting Ray's illegal deal­
ings as a "Merchant." You also stated, "Just the opposite. 
They can no more admit that they have lost control of the pri­
son, that the prisoners are running it, than they can fly 
to the moon."

Nothing could be further from the truth than these statements. 
First of all, Missouri’s correctional system has a complete 
open door press policy allowing complete access to the press 
at any time except in emergency situations. And I feel that 
if you were to visit any of our correctional facilities in 
Missouri, you would learn that we most certainly have not 
lost control of our institutions. Secondly, the staff here 
have cooperated completely with Mr. McMillan in obtaining in­
formation and most, if not all, information on Ray's confine­
ment in Missouri camo from our officials. In addition to this, 
I was never contacted by Mr. McMillan concerning this situation. 
Lastly and most importantly, your article referred to conditions 
of the Missouri State Penitentiary in the early 1960’s, but as 
seen from the above quote from Time, the reader would be led
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to believe that these same conditions "exist today and they, 
of course, do not.

I find this assessment most difficult to comprehend espec­
ially in view of the fact that to my knowledge neither Mr. 
McMillan nor the staff from Time Magazine ever came to Mis­
souri since my arrival here in July of 1973 to personally 
review the situation.

Very truly yours

GEORGE M. CAMP
Director of Correctional Services 
State of Missouri

GMC:ljr

cc: George McMillan 
Ned Bradford
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